ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 3, 2005
1:40 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 42
"An Act nam ng the Joe WIllianms, Sr., Coastal Trail."

MOVED HB 42 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to the establishment of the Kuskokwi m Port
Aut hority; and providing for an effective date."
HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 42
SHORT TITLE: JOE WLLIAMS, SR, COASTAL TRAIL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ELKI NS

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 10/ 05 (H CRA, TRA

01/ 20/ 05 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

01/ 20/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

01/ 20/ 05 (H M NUTE ( CRA)

01/ 21/ 05 (H CRA RPT 5DP

01/ 21/ 05 (H) DP: SALMON, LEDQOUX, NEUMAN, OLSQON,
THOVAS

01/ 21/ 05 (H FI' N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER TRA

02/ 08/ 05 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 08/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 3, 2005



02/ 08/ 05 (H M NUTE ( TRA)

02/ 09/ 05 (H TRA RPT 5DP

02/ 09/ 05 (H DP: SAL MON, NEUMAN,  THOVAS, GATTO,
ELKI NS

02/ 14/ 05 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

02/ 14/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 14/ 05 (H) M NUTE (FIN)

02/ 16/ 05 (H FIN RPT 9DP

02/ 16/ 05 (H) DP: HAWKER, WEYHRAUCH, CROFT, HOM
KELLY, STOLTZE, FOSTER, MEYER, CHENAULT

02/ 16/ 05 (H ALL MEMBERS COSPONSORS

02/ 16/ 05 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 16/ 05 (H VERSI ON: HB 42

02/ 18/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 18/ 05 (S) TRA, CRA

03/ 01/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 01/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

BILL: SB 40

SHORT TI TLE: KUSKCOKW M PORT AUTHORI TY

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COADERY, HOFFMAN

01/11/05 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 07/ 05

01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 11/ 05 (S) TRA, FIN

02/ 03/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 03/ 05 (S <Bi || Hearing Postponed to 02/08/05>
02/ 08/ 05 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 08/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 08/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( TRA)

02/ 15/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 15/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 17/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 17/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 17/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( TRA)

03/ 01/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 01/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( TRA)

03/ 03/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M. Jos CGovars

Staff to Representative Jim Elkins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 42

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 3, 2005



M. Mathew Nickoli, President and CEO

Calista Corporation

301 Calista Ct. Ste A

Anchor age, AK 99518

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 40

M. Max Angel |l an
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 40

M. Thor WIIians

Bet hel Gty Council man

P. O, Box 1388

Bet hel , AK 99559

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 40

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGE NS called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:40:39 PM Present were Senators
Al bert Kookesh, Hollis French, John Cowdery and Chair Charlie
Huggi ns.

HB 42-JOE W LLIAMS, SR, COASTAL TRAIL

1:41:10 PM
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGE NS announced HB 42 to be up for
consi derati on.

SENATOR FRENCH noved Version \A as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objections the notion carried.

1:41:. 32 PM

MR JOS GOVARS, staff to Representative Jim Elkins, presented HB
42. Joe WIllianms Sr. was the nmayor of Saxman for many years and
a well-respected citizen. M. CGovars noted the many letters of
support in the packet of proposed |egislation.

1:43:. 05 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. Govars if there was any opposition to HB
42.

MR. GOVARS replied no one has contacted Representative ElKkins’

office wth opposition. He has heard sone negative talk around
Ket chi kan referencing M. WIllians in a personal nature.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 3, 2005



CHAIR HUGA NS commented HB 42 was not new construction; it was
nam ng an existing trail.

MR. GOVARS agreed. The trail has been in place nore than 8
years.

SENATOR JOHN COWNDERY commented that opposition is frequently
per sonal .

MR. GOVARS replied nam ng sonet hing could al ways be problematic.

SENATOR COANDERY asked M. Govars if negative talk was
representative of the conmunity of Ketchikan.

MR. GOVARS answer ed no.
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for an explanation of the fiscal note.

MR. GOVARS explained in the House Conmunity and Regional Affairs
Standing Conmttee, the fiscal note from the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) regarded placing
the sign. The DOTPF estimated a cost of around $2,000, which
they later decided to fund. There was a fiscal note adopted in
the House Transportation Standing Conmittee, which the DOTPF
woul d fund.

1:46: 32 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for testinony and heard none.

SENATOR COADERY noved HB 42 out of commttee with individual
recommendations and attached fiscal notes. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

CHAI R HUGE NS announced a short at ease at 1:47:10 PM

SB 40- KUSKOKW M PORT AUTHORI TY

1:48:48 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS announced SB 40 to be up for consideration. He
recogni zed Mat hew N ckoli.

1:48: 54 PM

MATHEW NI CKOLI, President and CEQO, Calista Corporation, spoke
via teleconference in support of SB 40. Calista is looking into
financing for infrastructure projects. Calista owns 6.5 mllion
acres of subsurface property. Calista has aggressively marketed
for exploration. As a result nultiple mneral conpanies have

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 3, 2005



i nvested over $65 nmillion. Mneral mning has been successful in
the past. SB 40 would have a nmjor inpact on the regional
econony. Transportation and energy are two major issues that
need resolved. The port in Bethel is maximzed in the sumer
nont hs and cannot neet the needs of Donlin Creek devel opnent.

1:52: 36 PM

Pl acer Done can finance a port on their own but the region mnust
be involved for economc reasons. Calista wants to build a trust
between all participants and form a regional planning group
under SB 40 and work with all of the stakeholders. The group
would look at all the projects together keeping in mnd the
subsi stence activities of the region. Developnent is new to the
region and a regional planning group is needed to rmanage all the
projects. An alternative tax-exenpt financing nechanism would
allow the stakeholders to take part in the nost nonunental
devel opment project to take place in the region. Calista wants
to address financing alternatives to the project.

1:55:43 PM

When all of the resources at Donlin Creek are depleted and the
noney conpanies |eave, they want to have a financing structure
that would continue to bring in new, long-lasting projects. One
reason Calista seeks to have a port authority is because they
foresee the need for a port and road systemto receive cargo and
fuel for transit up the Kuskokwim River. On many occasi ons, sea-
goi ng barges have been stuck for weeks at a tine just above
Napaki ak.

1:57: 30 PM

Donlin Creek wll need transportation infrastructure that can
support the novenent of 150,000 tons of construction materi al
and 110,000 tons of supplies. Calista anticipates providi ng many
jobs for its shareholders fromthe infrastructure.

1:58:41 PM

Due to economes of scale, sea, river and land transportation
costs will drop. Diesel and heating fuel will becone econom cal.
1:59: 39 PM

Borough formation is a politically sensitive issue. Calista
wants to start with a port authority because they see it as a
way to bring all the stakeholders together to address the
financing needs of the project and to assist wth its
devel opnent .

2:01: 05 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 3, 2005



A comunity neeting wth Napakiak showed support from the
comunity.

2:02:05 PM
Calista expects Placer Done to conplete its work to determne
the feasibility wwthin a year or so.

2:02:44 PM

MR. NI CKOLlI said borough formation would take too nuch tinme to
nove forward with devel opnent. He asked for |egislative help and
hoped that Placer Done would work wth Calista for the
devel opnent of econom c projects.

2:03: 55 PM

Calista is trying to take a global approach to devel oping the
region to becone prosperous. He summarized with support for SB
40.

2:04: 37 PM
SENATOR COADERY asked M. N ckoli whether he heard prior
testinony on the bill

MR. NI CKOLI responded he was in Washington DC but he was briefed
on the testinony.

SENATOR COWNDERY noted there was extensive testinony from the
peopl e of Bethel that was not positive. He asked the nunber of
villages represented in the proposed area.

MR, NICKOLI inforned the inmrmediate inpact would be to Crooked
Creek. There are 19 total villages that would be affected on the
transportation route.

2:06: 37 PM
SENATOR COWNDERY asked whether the plan was to ship all the ore
or to do processing on site.

MR. NI CKOLI said there was no determi nation yet. Placer Donme has
identified that they want private project financing.

2:10: 41 PM

MR. NI CKOLI added the negative testinony against the bill is not
representative of the region.

SENATOR CONDERY asked the nunber of people in the proposed area.

MR. NI CKOLI responded approxi mtely 9, 000.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 3, 2005



2:15: 29 PM
SENATOR KOOKESH asked M. Nickoli whether he had discussions
w t h Kuskokwi m Cor por ati on.

MR. NI CKOLI advised they presented a resolution at their January
neeting to address the nmultiple issues that affect Donlin Creek.
Their board decided not to take up the nenorandum of
understanding that Calista wanted to nove forward. The multiple
issues are business devel opnent, subsi stence protection,
sustainability, renediation and |and use, energy devel opnent,
and transportation.

2:18: 07 PM

SENATOR KOOKESH asked whether there has been further discussion
on the nenorandum of agreenent and whether he was planning on
nmeeting with them

MR N CKOLI said he emailed the president so they have had
cont act . Calista wuld 1like an agreenment wth Kuskokw m
Cor por at i on.

2:19:43 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS suggested M. Ni ckol i cont act his state
representatives for assistance.

2:27:14 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked the |ikelihood of putting a planning group
t oget her.

MR. NI CKOLI expressed confidence that it would happen. He added
the Kuskokwim River is a major river that provides sustenance to
the people. The inpact of the Donlin Creek project would have a
tremendous affect on the people.

2:32:10 PM
CHAIR HUGGA NS asked M. N ckoli to describe how mne would
proceed if the port authority doesn't happen.

MR. NICKCOLI asserted Placer Donme could construct it but
| andowners need the other projects to serve the people when the
gold is gone.

2:34:51 PM
MR N CKOLI added SB 40 would open the door for economc
devel opment. Crooked Creek residents support the project.

Kuskokwi m Cor porati on woul d al so benefit.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 3, 2005



2:38:40 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked himto characterize the inpact factors al ong
the river for econom c devel opnent.

MR, NI CKOLI said fisheries have always sustained jobs in the
region. Federal subsidies have created jobs and the health
corporation enploys over one thousand people but those are
federal nonies comng in. He said he is thinking of private
noney. Since he has been president he has heard from the people
they want resource devel opnent from private conpanies. M ning
and resource devel opment are the key.

2:42: 03 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked the life of the Donlin Creek project.

MR. NI CKOLI specul ated a 20-30 year life.

2:43: 20 PM
SENATOR CONDERY stated it would be a big asset if it happened
He asked the reason that Placer Done has been silent.

MR. NI CKOLI said last year they wote a letter on another port
authority because Calista asked them to. Placer Done feels this
is a political issue and they don’t need a public port. They
could do the project on their own.

2.:49:02 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked him to contact the people who are opposed
to SB 40 and turn them around.

MR. NI CKOLI said, “We will.”

2:49: 21 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. N ckoli to act as an energizing force to
bring the community together on SB 40.

MR. NICKOLI invited legislatures to visit the inpacted villages.

2:52:12 PM
MR. MAX ANGELLAN, testified via teleconference in support of SB
40. He said he lives in a village that is 20 mles east of

Bethel and he is concerned about the cost of living in the
future
2:59: 04 PM

MR, THOR WLLI AVS offered his support on SB 40.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 3, 2005



CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for a resolution fromthe Cty of Bethel.
SENATOR CONDERY asked about commerce on the river in winter.

MR. WLLIAMS said trucks nove up and down the river in winter on
ice that is 3-4 feet thick.

CHAIR HUGGA NS held SB 40 in committee.
There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chai r Huggi ns adjourned the neeting at 3:04:05 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 3, 2005



